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REPUBLIC OF THE PHILIPPINES
PROVINCE OF LEYTE
TACLOBAN CITY
-000-

SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN

MINUTES OF THE 35 REGULAR SESSION OF THE 12™

SANGGUNIANG

PANLALAWIGAN OF LEYTE HELD AT THE SESSION HALL, LEYTE PROVINCIAL
GOVERNMENT COMPLEX, PALO, LEYTE ON 07 APRIL 2026.

PHYSICALLY PRESENT:
1. Hon. Ronnan Christian M. Reposar

Hon. Wilson S. Uy

Hon. Raissa J. Villasin

Hon. Mildred Joy P. Que

Hon. Alan P. Ang

Hon. Elmer Frederico N. Codilla
Hon. Flaviano C. Centino, Jr.
Hon. Michael L. Cari

. Hon. Ma. Martina L. Gimenez
0.Hon. MJ Luinly D. Lumen

2OXND A WN

VIRTUALLY PRESENT:
1. Hon. Leonardo M. Javier, Jr.
2. Hon. Carlo P. Loreto
3. Hon. Carmen L. Cari

ABSENT:

1. Hon. Marie Kathryn V. Kabigting

1! District Board Member
Temp. Floor Leader

1t District Board Member
2"! District Board Member
2"4 District Board Member
3" District Board Member
4" District Board Member
4" District Board Member
5" District Board Member
Liga ng mga Barangay President
SK Federation President
Ex-Officio Member

Vice-Governor/Presiding Officer
5" District Board Member

PCL President/Ex-Officio Member
Ex-Officio Member

3" District Board Member
(On-Leave)

The 35" Regular Session opened at 11:28 o'clock in the morning presided over by the

Honorable Leonardo M. Javier, Jr., Vice-Governor of Leyte.

Opening Prayer was led by the Honorable Elmer Frederico N. Codilla, 4th District

Board Member and followed by the singing of the Philippine National Anthem.

A motion to dispense with the Panunumpa sa Watawat, the Leyte Hymn, the PBMLP

Hymn and the PBMLP Creed of the agenda was presented by the Floor Leader Honorable

Hon. Carlo P. Loreto, duly seconded by the Honorable Wilson S. Uy, 1st District Board



50

51

52

53

54

55

56

57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

85

86

87

88

Member, Honorable Mildred Joy P. Que, 2nd District Board Member and Flaviano C.
Centino, Jr., 4th District Board Member.
Considering that there was no objection, the motion was carried.
The Honorable Presiding Officer requested the SP Secretary Mrs. Florinda Jill S.
Uyvico, to call the roll in order to determine the presence of quorum.
MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SP SECRETARY
The following Members are in attendance:
PHYSICALLY PRESENT:
Hon. Ronnan Christian M. Reposar Temp. Floor Leader
Hon. Wilson S. Uy
Hon. Raissa J. Villasin
Hon. Mildred Joy P. Que
Hon. Alan P. Ang
Hon. Elmer Frederico N. Codilla
Hon. Flaviano C. Centino, Jr.
Hon. Michael L. Cari
Hon. Ma. Martina L. Gimenez
Hon. Carmen L. Cari
Hon. MJ Luinly D. Lumen
VIRTUALLY PRESENT:
Hon. Leonardo M. Javier, Jr. Vice-Governor/Presiding Officer
Hon. Carlo P. Loreto Floor Leader
Fourteen (13) Members are present, Mr. Chair, Mr. Floor Leader.
HON. CARLO P. LORETO: FLOOR LEADER/5™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
We have a quorum, Mr. Chair.
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER, JR.: PRESIDING OFFICER/NICE-GOVERNOR
-Okay, we have a quorum to do business.
HON. CARLO P. LORETO: FLOOR LEADER/5™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
Mr. Chair, | am having a difficulty with the signal here, may | request the Honorable
Reposar to kindly take over the floor on my behalf?

HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1%T DIST. BOARD MEMBER

Gladly, Honorable Floor |eader.
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HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER, JR.: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE-GOVERNOR

Honorable Floor Leader Reposar, please take over.

HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/15" DIST. BOARD MEMBER

Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the consideration of the minutes of the
previous session dated March 24, 2026.

Are there any corrections or proposed amendments?

Hearing none, Mr. Chair, | move that we approve the minutes of the previous meeting
dated March 24, 2026. | so move.

HON. RAISSA J. VILLASIN: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.

HON. WILSON S. UY: 157 DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.

HON. MILDRED JOY P. QUE: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

Second.

HON. LEONARDO JAVIER, JR.: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE-GOVERNOR

There’s a motion.

It's been seconded.

Motion is approved.

Approved unanimously. RES. NO. 2026-782
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°" DIST. BOARD MEMBER

Thank you, Mr. Chair.

Considering that there are no Committee Reports and no items also for First Reading
and Reference of Business, we now proceed to the Business of the Day. Item no. 1, Madam
Secretary, please.

MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY
BUSINESS OF THE DAY:

ITEM NO. 01

Presented for consideration is Resolution No. 2026-
045 of the Sangguniang Bayan of MacArthur, Leyte, requesting
the Sangguniang Panlalawigan Committee on Rules, Laws and
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Privileges o render legal opinion on Barangay Ordinance No.
001 Series of 2026 of Brgy. Liwayway, MacArthur, leyte,
entitled; “AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A FORTY (40) YEARS OF
MORATORIUM AND NO ENTRY ON ALL FORMS OF MINING
ACTIVITIES, WHETHER SMALL-SCALE OR LARGE SCALE, WITHIN THE
TERRITORIAL  JURISDICTION OF BARANGAY LIWAYWAY,
MUNICIPALITY OF MACARTHUR, PROVINCE OF LEYTE.

HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Mr. Chair, | move that this be referred to the Committee on Rules, Laws, and
Privileges and also endorse this to the Provincial Legal Office for review. | so move, Mr.
Chair.
HON. RAISSA J. VILLASIN: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.
HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

Second.

HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/ICE GOVERNOR
Duly seconded.
Any questions?
Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-783
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Thank you, Mr. Cﬁair. We now proceed to the next item. ltem no. 02, Madam
Secretary, please.
MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY

ITEM NO. 02

Presented for consideration is an endorsement of
the POPS Plan for the Province of Leyte for C.Y. 2026-2028 with @
request for a resclution from the August Body for its approval
and adopftion.

HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°" DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Mr. Chair, will you please recognize the Honorable Uy?
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/NICE GOVERNOR

Honorable Uy, you are recognized.



157 HON. WILSON S. UY: 1°T DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

158 Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Floor Leader.

159 [tem no. 2 is Presented for consideration is an endorsement of the POPS Plan for the
160  Province of Leyte for C.Y. 2026-2028 with a request for a resolution from the August Body for
161  its approval and adoption.

162 Mr. Chair, if my motion is in order, | move that we approve and adopt the POPS Plan
163  for the Province of Leyte for C.Y. 2026-2028 as requested. | so move.

164  HON. RAISSA J. VILLASIN: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

165 Second.

166 HON. ELMER FREDERICO N. CODILLA: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

167 Second.

168 HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/NICE GOVERNOR

169 Duly seconded.
170 Any questions?
171 Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-784

172 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/15" DIST. BOARD MEMBER
173 Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the next item. liem no. 03, Madam

174  Secretary, please.

175 MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY

176 ITEM NO. 03

177

178 Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL
179 ORDINANCE NO. 2026-03, of the Municipality of Alangalang,
180 leyte, entitled: “AN ORDINANCE CREATING THE MUNICIPAL
181 LAW ENFORCEMENT UNIT FOR THE ENFORCEMENT OF MUNICIPAL
182 ORDINANCES AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS THEREOE.” Same is
183 recommended for the declarafion of its VALIDITY by the
184 Provincial Legal Office per 2nd Indorsement dated March 03,
185 2026.

186 ITEM NO. 04

187

188 Presented for consideration is  MUNICIPAL
189 ORDINANCE NO. 2026-04, of the Municipality of Alangalang,
190 Leyte, entitled: “AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SEAL OF
191 GOOD LOCAL GOVERNANCE FOR BARANGAYS (SGLGB) IN THE
192 MUNICIPALITY OF ALANGALANG, LEYTE, PRESCRIBING ITS

193 IMPLEMENTING GUIDELINES, CRITERIA, AND FOR OTHER
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PURPOSES.” Same is recommended for the declaration of iis
VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2nd Indorsement
dated March 04, 2026.

ITEM NO. 05

Presented for consideration is  MUNICIPAL
ORDINANCE NO. 2026-08, of the Municipality of Alangalang,
Leyte, entiled: “AN ORDINANCE CREATING THE TOURISM
OPERATIONS OFFICE 1 POSITION WITH SALARY GRADE 11,
PRESCRIBING ITS QUALIFICATIONS, POWERS AND FUNCTIONS,
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.” Same is recommended for the
declarafion of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per
2nd Indorsement dated March 04, 2026.

ITEM NO. 06

Presented for considerafion is  MUNICIPAL
ORDINANCE NO. 2026-10, SERIES OF 2026 of the Municipality of
Alangalang, Leyte, enfitled: “AN ORDINANCE CREATING ONE
(1) SOCIAL WORKER OFFICER Il (SWO 1I) PLANTILLA POSITION
SALARY GRADE 15 IN THE MUNICIPAL SOCIAL WELFARE AND
DEVELOPMENT OFFICE (MSWDO) OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF
ALANGALANG, LEYTE, AND PROVIDING FUNDS THEREFOR.
Same is recommended for the declaration of its VALIDITY by
the Provincial Legal Office per 2nd Indorsement dated March
04, 2026.

ITEM NO. 07

Presented for consideration is  MUNICIPAL
ORDINANCE NO. 20246-01, of the Municipality of Palo, Leyle,
enfitled: “THE REVISED INVESTMENT AND INCENTIVE CODE OF
THE MUNICIPALITY OF PALO, LEYTE. Same is recommended for
the declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office
per 2nd Indorsement dated March 20, 2026.

HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°" DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Mr. Chair, will you please recognize the Honorable Uy for these items, please.
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR
Honorable Uy, you are recognized.
HON. WILSON S. UY: 1°" DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Floor Leader.
ltem no. 3 is Municipal Ordinance No. 2026-03, of the Municipality of Alangalang,
Leyte, entitled: “An Ordinance Creating the Municipal Law Enforcement Unit for The

Enforcement of Municipal Ordinances and Appropriating Funds Thereof.”
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ltem no. 4 is Municipal Ordinance No. 2026-04, of the Municipality of Alangalang,
Leyte, entitled: “An Ordinance Establishing the Seal of Good lLocal Governance for
Barangays (SGLGB) In the Municipality of Alangalang, Leyte, Prescribing Its Implementing
Guidelines, Criteria, And for Other Purposes.”

ltem no. 5 is Municipal Ordinance No. 2026-08, of the Municipality of Alangalang,
Leyte, entitled: “An Ordinance Creating the Tourism Operations Office 1 Position with Salary
Grade 11, Prescribing lts Qualifications, Powers and Functions, And for Other Purposes.”

[tem no 6. Is Municipal Ordinance No. 2026-10, Series Of 2026 of the Municipality of
Alangalang, Leyte, entitled: “An Ordinance Creating One (1) Social Worker Officer Il (SWO 1)
Plantilla Position Salary Grade 15 In the Municipal Social Welfare and Development Office
(MSWDO) Of the Municipality of Alangalang, Leyte, And Providing Funds Therefor.

Item no. 7 is Municipal Ordinance No. 2026-01, of the Municipality of Palo, Leyte,
entitled: “The Revised Investment and Incentive Code of The Municipality of Palo, Leyte.

Mr. Chair, if my motion is in order, | move that we approve the Ordinances from
Alangalang and Palo, Leyte. | so move.
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: 13T DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

Second.
HON. RAISSA J. VILLASIN: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

Second.
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/NICE GOVERNOR

Duly seconded.

Any questions?

Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-785
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°" DIST. BOARD MEMBER

Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the next item. ltem no. 08, Madam

Secretary, please.



268 MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY

269 ITEM NO. 08

270

271 Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE
272 NO. 02, SERIES OF 2026, of the Municipality of Barugo, Leyte, entitled:
273 “AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING HEAVY TRUCKS/TRAILERS FROM
274 ENTERING AND USING THE MUNICIPAL ROADS, BARANGAY ROADS
275 AND OTHER LOCAL ACCESS ROADS AND PROVIDING PENALTIES FOR
276 VIOLATIONS THEREOF. Same is recommended for the declaration of
277 its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2nd Indorsement
278 dated March 24, 2026.

279

280 ITEM NO. 09

281

282 Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE
283 NO. 25-107, SERIES OF 2025 of the Municipality of Burauen, Leyle,
284 entitted: “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING RENEWAL OF FRANCHISE TO
285 FERDINAND L. TORRES FOR THE OPERATION OF A MOTORIZED
286 TRICYCLE-FOR-HIRE ALONG THE POBLACION (B-MARTODA) ROUTE,
287 MUNICUPALITY OF BURAUEN, LEYTE.” Same is recommended for the
288 declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2nd
289 Indorsement dated February 26, 2026.

290

291 ITEM NO. 10

292

293 Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE
294 NO. 25-108, SERIES OF 2025 of the Municipality of Burauen, Leyle,
295 entitled: “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING RENEWAL OF FRANCHISE TO
296 ROLAND D. RENOMERON FOR THE OPERATION OF A MOTORIZED
297 TRICYCLE-FOR-HIRE ALONG THE TAMBUCO-MARKET (BASTTODA)
298 ROUTE, MUNICIPALITY OF BURAUEN, LEYTE.” Same is recommended
299 for the declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per
300 2nd Indorsement dated February 26, 2026.

301

302 ITEM NO. 11

303

304 Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE
305 NO. 25-109, SERIES OF 2025 of the Municipality of Burauen, Leyte,
306 enfifled: “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING RENEWAL OF FRANCHISE TO
307 WILMA P. POSION FOR THE OPERATION OF A MOTORIZED TRICYCLE-
308 FOR-HIRE ALONG THJE POBLACION (SAN DIEGO TODA) ROUTE,
309 MUNICIPALITY OF BURAUEN, LEYTE,” Same is recommended for the
310 declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2nd
311 Indorsement dated February 26, 2026

312

313 ITEM NO. 12

314

315 Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE
316 NO. 25-110, SERIES OF 2025 of the Municipality of Burauven, Leyte,
317 entitied: “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING RENEWAL OF FRANCHISE TO
318 MAEL N. REFUERZO FOR THE QPERATION OF A MOTORIZED TRICYCLE-

319 FOR-HIRE ALONG THE TAMBUCO-MARKET (BASTTODA) ROUTE,
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MUNICIPALITY OF BURAUEN, LEYTE.” Same is recommended for the
declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2nd
Indorsement dated February 26, 202¢4.

ITEM NO. 13

Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE
NO. 25-112, SERIES OF 2025 of the Municipality of Burauen, Leyte,
enfitled: “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING RENEWAL OF FRANCHISE TO
GILBERT F. CABUS, JR. FOR THE OPERATION OF A MOTORIZED
TRICYCLE-FOR-HIRE ALONG THE POBLACION (SIX TODA) ROUTE,
MUNICIPALITY OF BURAUEN, LEYTE.” Same is recommended for the
declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2nd
Indorsement dated February 26, 2026.

ITEM NO. 14

Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE
NO. 25-113, SERIES OF 2025 of the Municipality of Burauen, Leyte,
enfitied: “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING RENEWAL OF FRANCHISE TO
EDMUNDO B. SABALLA FOR THE OPERATION OF A MOTORIZED
TRICYCLE-FOR-HIRE ALONG THE POBLACION (LUTODA) ROUTE,
MUNICIPALITY OF BURAUEN, LEYTE.” Same is recommended for the
declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2nd
Indorsement dated February 24, 2026.

ITEM NO. 15

Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE
NO. 25-114, SERIES OF 2025 of the Municipality of Buraven, Leyte,
entitled: “AN ORDINANCE GRANTING RENEWAL OF FRANCHISE TO
SAMUEL C. CORDA FOR THE OPERATION OF A MOTORIZED TRICYCLE-
FOR-HIRE ALONG THE POBLACION (MUNICIPAL TODA) ROUTE,
MUNICIPALITY OF BURAUEN, LEYTE.” Same is recommended for the
declarafion of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2nd
Indorsement dated February 26, 2026.

HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/15T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Mr. Chair, there are several items from the 2™ District, will you please recognize the
Honorable Villasin for Items no. 8-15?
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR
Honorable Que, you are recognized.
HON. RAISSA J. VILLASIN: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Thank you, Mr. Chair. Thank you, Mr. Floor Leader.
ltem no. 8 is Municipal Ordinance No. 02, Series Of 2026, of the Municipality of

Barugo, Leyte, entitled: “An Ordinance Prohibiting Heavy Trucks/Trailers from Entering and
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Using the Municipal Roads, Barangay Roads and Other Local Access Roads and Providing
Penalties for Violations Thereof.

ltems no. 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 and 15 are all from the Municipality of Burauen, Leyte.
These are all renewal of franchise of motorized Tricycle-for-hire along the different routes of
the Municipality of Burauen, Leyte.

If my motion is in order, | move to declare valid Municipal Ordinance No. 02, Series Of
2026, of the Municipality of Barugo, Leyte and Ordinance no. 25-107, 109, 109, 110, 112,
113 and 114 of the Municipality of Burauen, Leyte. | so move.

HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: 1°T DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.
HON. MILDRED JOY P. QUE: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.
HON. MJ LUINLY D. LUMEN: EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, SK PRESIDENT
Second.
HON. MA. MARTINA L. GIMENEZ: EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, LIGA NG MGA BRGY PRESIDENT
Second.
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR
Duly seconded.
Any questions?
Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-786
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the next item. ltem no. 16, Madam
Secretary, please.
MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY
ITEM NO. 16
Presented for consideration is  MUNICIPAL
ORDINANCE NO. 1, SERIES OF 2026 of the Municipality of La
Paz, Leyte, entitled: “AN ORDINANCE INSTITUTING
REGULATION TO PROTECT THE COCONUT AND COPRA
INDUSTRY OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF LA PAZ, PROVIDING

GUIDELINES AGAINTS THEFT, PROHIBITING THE
EXPLOITATION OF MINORS, AND PRESCRIBING PENALTIES

10
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FOR VIOLATION THEREOF, Same is recommended for the
declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2™
Indorsement dated March 20, 2026.

ITEM NO. 17

Presented for consideration is  MUNICIPAL
ORDINANCE NO. 2, SERIES OF 2026 of the Municipality of La
Paz, Leyte, entitled: “AN ORDINANCE REQUIRING THE
INSTALLATION AND OPERATION OF A CLOSED-CIRCUIT
TELEVESION (CCTV) SURVEILLANCE SYSTEM IN CERTAIN
BUSINESS ESTABLISHMENT, AND OTHER PLACES AND
SPACES CONSIDERED AS HIGH-RISK WITHIN THE
MUNICIPALITY OF LA PAZ, LEYTE AND PRESCRIBING
PENALTIES FOR VIOLATIONS THEREOF AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES, Same is recommended for the declaration of its
VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2" Indorsement dated
March 20, 2026.

ITEM NO. 18

Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE
NO. 1, SERIES OF 2026 of the Municipality of MacArthur, Leyte,
entitled: “AN ORDINANCE INSTITUTIONALIZING THE
MACARTHUR PEOPLE’S COUNCIL IN THE MUNICIPALITY OF
MACARTHUR AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS THEREOF. Same is
recommended for the declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial
Legal Office per 2™ Indorsement dated March 20, 2026.

ITEM NO. 19

Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE
NO. 11, SERIES OF 20250f the Municipality of MacArthur, Leyte,
entitled: “AN ORDINANCE DECLARING LAKE BITO, BALIRE
RIVER, IBAWON RIVER, AND ALL WETLANDS AND BODIES OF
WATER WITHIN THE MUNICIPALITY OF MACARTHUR, LEYTE
AS PROTECTED WATER ECOSYSTEMS, PROVIDING
MEASURES FOR THEIR CONSERVATION, SUSTAINABLE
MANAGEMENT, APPROPRIATING FUNDS AND PENALTIES FOR
VIOLATIONS THEREOF. Same is recommended for the declaration
of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2™ Indorsement
dated March 20, 2026.

ITEM NO. 20

Presented for  consideration is MUNICIPAL.
ORDINANCE NO. 3, SERIES OF 2026 of the Municipality of
Tunga, Leyte, proposed ordinance entitled: “AN ORDINANCE
ESTABLISHING THE INSTITUTIONAL MECHANISMS FOR
TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS, PROTECTION AND SUPPORT OF
TRAFFICKED PERSONS IN THE MUNICIPALITY OF TUNGA,
LEYTE, PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF REPUBLIC ACT
NO. 9208, OTHERWISE KNOWN AS THE “ANTI-TRAFFICKING IN
PERSONS ACT OF 2003,” AS AMENDED BY REPUBLIC ACT NO.
10364, OR THE “ EXPANDED ANTI-TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS
ACT OF 2012, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. Same is

11



455 recommended for the declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial

456 Legal Office per 2" Indorsement dated March 20, 2026.

457

458 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR. TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
459 For Iltem Nos. 16 to 20, Mr. Chair, may the Honorable Joy Que be recognized?

460 HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/NVICE GOVERNOR

461 The Honorable Joy Que, you are recognized.

462 HON. MILDRED JOY P. QUE: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

463 Mr. Chair | move that the Sangguniang Panlalawigan declare as valid Agenda ltem
464 Nos. 16 to 20. Pursuant to Section No. 56 of the Local Government Code and, of course, base
465 on the respective 2™ Indorsement of the Provincial Legal Office the following Municipal
466 Ordinances.

467 ltem No. 16 from La Paz, Leyte, the protection of Coconut and Copra Industry
468 including anti-theft measures and the prohibition on exploitation of minors.

469 Item No. 17 from La Paz, Leyte, the CCTV requirement for high-risk establishments

470 and areas.

471 ltem No. 18 from MacArthur, Leyte, the institutionalization of the MacArthur People’s
472 Council.
473 ltem No. 19 from MacArthur, Leyte, the declaration of protected water ecosystems to

474 include Lake Bito, Balire River, Ibawon River and other wetlands.

475 And ltem No. 20 from Tunga, Leyte, the anti-trafficking mechanisms pursuant to
476 Republic Act No. 9208 as amended.

477 All having reviewed and found to be in the prowess effective Sangguniang Bayan and
478 of course consistent with existing Laws and not contrary to the Constitution as well as National
479 Statutes, | therefore move that all of these Municipal Ordinances be declared valid. | so move.
480 HON. MA. MARTINA L. GIMENEZ: EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, LIGA NG MGA BRGY PRESIDENT
481 Second.

482 HON. ELMER FREDERICO N. CODILLA: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

483 Second.

484
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485 HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

486 Second.

487 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
488 Second.

489 HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR

490 Duly seconded.

491 Any questions?

492 Hearing none, motion is approved.

493 Approved unanimously. RES. NO. 2026-787

494 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1%" DIST. BOARD MEMBER
495 Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the next item. ltem no. 21, Madam
496  Secretary, please.

497 MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY

498 ITEM NO. 21

499

500 Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE NO.
501 2026-01, of the Municipality of Albuera, Leyte, enfitled: “AN
502 ORDINANCE MANDATING RESPONSIBLE DOG OWNERSHIP IN THE
503 MUNICIPALITY OF ALBUERA, LEYTE AND PROVIDING PENALTIES
504 FOR VIOLATION THEREOF. Same is recommended for the
505 declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per
506 2nd Indorsement daled March 20, 2026.

507

508 ITEM NO. 22

509

510 Presented  for  consideration is  MUNICIPAL
511 ORDINANCE NO. 2026-06, of the Municipality of Albueraq, Leyte,
512 entitied:  “AN ORDINANCE ABOLISHING, CREATING, AND
513 RENAMING VARIOUS POSITIONS IN THE OFFICE OF THE
514 MUNICIPAL AGRICULTURIST OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT UNIT
515 OF ALBUERA, LEYTE, AMENDING FOR THAT PURPOSE THE
516 ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE AND STAFFING PATTERN (OSSP),
517 AND APPROPRIATING FUNDS THEREFOR, Same is recommended
518 for the declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal
519 Office per 2nd Indorsement dated March 20, 2026.

520

521 ITEM NO. 23

522

523 Presented for consideration is  MUNICIPAL
524 ORDINANCE NO. 515-241125, of the Municipality of Palompon,
525 Leyte, eniitled: “AN ORDINANCE INSTITUTIONALIZING THE

526 MUNICIPAL PROJECTS ACCEPTANCE AND COORDINATION
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566

COUNCIL (MPACC), ENSURING THE ALIGNMENT OF APPROVED
PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS TO BE IMPLEMENTED WITHIN THE
MUNICIPALITY OF PALOMPON WITH LOCAL DEVELOPMENT, ECO-
TOURISM, ENVIRONMENTAL MANAGEMENT, DISASTER RISK
REDUCTION, CLIMATE RESILIENCY, LAND USE, AND ZONING
FRAMEWORKS, PURSUANT TO THE CONSULTATION REQUIREMENTS
UNDER THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE OF 1991, AND
REQUIRING PRIOR ACCEPTANCE OF ALL PROJECTS, PROGRAMS,
AND ACTIVITIES (PPAs) PRIOR TO IMPLEMENTATION WITHIN THE
TERRITORIAL JURISDICTION OF THE MUNICIPALITY,” Same is
recommended for the declaration of its VALIDITY by the
Provincial Legal Office per 2¢ Indorsement dated March 24,
2026.
ITEM NO. 24

Presented  for consideration is  MUNICIPAL
ORDINANCE NO. 516-241125 , of the Municipality of Palompon,
Leyte, enfitted: “AN ORDINANCE REGULATING THE SALE,
DISTRIBUTION, AND USE OF FIRECRACKERS AND FIREWORKS
WITHIN THE MUNICIPALITY OF PALOMPON, LEYTE, PROVIDING
FOR DESIGNATED FIRECRACKERS ZONES, SAFETY AND
ENVIRONMENTAL GUIDELINES, PENALTIES, AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES,” Same is recommended for the declaration of its
VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2rd Indorsement
dated March 24, 2026.
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°3T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
For ltem No. 21-24 are all proposed measures coming from the Municipalities covered
by the 4™ District of Leyte, may the Chair recognize the Honorable Codilla, Mr. Chair?
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/ICE GOVERNOR
The Honorable Codilla, you are recognized.
HON. ELMER FREDERICO N. CODILLA: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Thank you, Mr. Chair, Mr. Floor leader.
tem No. 21 is Municipal Ordinance No. 2026-01 of the Municipality of Albuera, an
Ordinance mandating responsible dog ownership in the Municipality of Albuera and providing
penalties for violation thereof.
The next is Municipal Ordinance No. 2026-06 of the Municipality of Albuera, Leyte, an
Ordinance Abolishing, Creating, and Renaming Various Positions in the Office of the Municipal

Agriculturist of the Local Government Unit of Albuera, Leyte, amending for that purpose the

Organizational Structure and Staffing Pattern (OSSP), and appropriating fund thereof.
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Item No. 23 is Municipal Ordinance No. 515-241125, of the Municipality of Palompon,
Leyte an Ordinance Institutionalizing the Municipal Projects Acceptance and Coordination
Council (MPACC), ensuring the alignment of approved Projects and Programs {o be
implemented within the Municipality of Palompon with Local Development, Eco-Tourism,
Environmental Management, Disaster Risk Reduction, Climate Resiliency, Land Use, and
Zoning Frameworks, pursuant to the Consultation requirements under the Local Government
Code of 1991, and requiring prior acceptance of all Projects, Programs, and Activities (PPAs)
prior to Implementation within the Territorial Jurisdiction of the Municipality.

Lastly, ltem No. 24 an Ordinance No. 516-241125 of the Municipality of Palompon, an
Ordinance Regulating the Sale, Distribution and use of Firecrackers and Fireworks within the
Municipality of Palompon, Leyte, providing for designated Firecrackers Zones, Safety and
Environmental Guidelines, Penalties and for other purposes.

If a motion is in order | move for the approval of Ordinance No. 2026-01 of the
Municipality of Albuera, Municipal Ordinance No. 2026-06 of Albuera, and Ordinance No. 515-
241125 of Palompon, Leyte and lastly, Ordinance No. 516-241125 of the Municipality of
Palompon. | so move.

HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

Second.

HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR

Duly seconded.

Any questions?

Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-788

HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/15" DIST. BOARD MEMBER

Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the next item. ltem no. 25, Madam

Secretary, please.
MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY

ITEM NO. 25

Presented for consideration is MUNICIPAL
ORDINANCE NO. 2026-05, of the Municipality of Hilongos,
Leyte, entitied: “AN ORDINANCE ABOLISHING THE POSITION OF
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598 ENGINEERING AIDE (SALARY GRADE 4, ITEM NO. 147) ASSIGNED

599 AT THE OFFICE OF THE MUNICIPAL ENGINEER OF THE LOCAL
600 GOVERNMENT UNIT OF HILONGOS. OF BURAUEN, Same is
601 recommended for the declaration of its VALIDITY by the
602 Provincial Legal Office per 2nd Indorsement dated March 04,
603 2026.

604

605 ITEM NO. 26

606

607 Presented  for  consideration is  MUNICIPAL
608 ORDINANCE NO. 1, SERIES OF 2024, of the Municipality of
609 Matalom, Leyte, enfifled: “AN ORDINANCE HONORING AND
610 GRANTING CENTENARIAN CASH GIFT TO SENIOR CITIZENS AGED
611 ONE HUNDRED (100) YEARS OLD AND ABOVE IN THE
612 MUNICIPALITY OF MATALOM, LEYTE, APPROPRIATING FUNDS
613 THEREFOR, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. Same is recommended
614 for the declaration of ifs VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal
615 Office per 2nd Indorsement dated March 24, 2026.

616

617 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
618 Mr. Chair, these items are Proposed Measures coming from the 5™ District of Leyte.
619 May the Chair recognize the Honorable Michael Cari?

620 HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR

621 The Honorable Mike Cari, you are recognized.

622 HON. MICHAEL L. CARL: 5™ DIST. BOARD MEMBER

623 Thank you, very much and good morning, Honorable Presiding Chair.

624 I have here ltem No. 25 and 26, if my motion is in order | would like to move for the
625 passage for an Omnibus Resolution declaring the validity of the following items subject to the
626 condition recommended therein.

627 ltem No. 25 is Municipal Ordinance No. 2026-05 of the Municipality of Hilongos, Leyte
628 entitled an Ordinance Abolishing the Position of Engineering Aide Salary Grade 4 assigned at
629 the Office of the Municipal Engineer of the Local Government Unit of Hilongos.

630 And ltem No. 26 is Municipal No. 1, Series of 2026 of the Municipality of Matalom
631 entitled an Ordinance Honoring and Granting Centenarian Cash Gifts to Senior Citizens Aged
632 One Hundred Years Old and above in the Municipality of Matalom, Leyte, Appropriating Funds
633 therefor, and for other purposes. | so move, Honorable Chair.

634 HON. RAISSA J. VILLASIN: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

635 Second.
16



636 HON. ELMER FREDERICO N. CODILLA: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
637 Second.

638 HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

639 Second.

640 HON. MJ LUINLY D. LUMEN: EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, SK PRESIDENT

641 Second.

642 HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR

643 Duly seconded.
644 Any gquestions?
645 Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-789

646 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/15" DIST. BOARD MEMBER
647 Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the next item. ltem no. 27, Madam

648  Secretary, please.

649 MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY

650 ITEM NO. 27

651

652 Presented for consideration is  MUNICIPAL
653 ORDINANCE NO. 1, § 2026 of the Municipadlity of Villaba, Leyte,
654 entitled: “AN AMENDMENT TO ARTICLE E, CHAPTER V OF
655 MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE NO. 126, $-2020 OTHERWISE KNOWN AS
656 THE “2020 REVISED REVENUE CODE OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF
657 VILLABA” Same is recommended for the declaration of ifs
658 VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office per 2nd Indorsement
659 dated March 09, 2026.

660 ITEM NO. 28

661

662 Presented  for  consideration is  MUNICIPAL
663 ORDINANCE NO. 2, § 2026 of the Municipality of Villaba, Leyte,
664 entitled: “AN ORDINANCE CREATING THE PLANTILLA POSITION
665 OF LEGISLATIVE STAFF OFFICER 1lt WITH SALARY GRADE 18 AT THE
666 OFFICE OF THE SANGGUNIANG BAYAN OF VILLABA, LEYTE AND
667 APPROPRIATING FUNDS THEREOF. Same is recommended for
668 the declaration of its VALIDITY by the Provincial Legal Office
669 per 2nd Indorsement dated March 03, 2026.

670

671 ITEM NO. 29

672

673 Presented for  consideration s MUNICIPAL
674 ORDINANCE NO. 5, SERIES OF 2026, of the Municipality of
675 VILLABA, Leyte, entitled: “AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION

676 5G.02, ARTICLE 6 (MARKET FEES AND CHARGES) OF MUNICIPAL

17



677

678

679

680

681

682

683

684

685

686

687

688

689

690

691

692

693

694

695

696

697

698

699

700

701

702

703

704

705

706

707

708

ORDINANCE NO. 126, $-2020 OTHERWISE KNOWN AS THE 2020 “
REVISED REVENUE CODE OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF VILLABA”".
Same is recommended for the declaration of its VALIDITY by
the Provincial Legal Office per 27 Indorsement dated March
13, 2026.

RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1®" DIST. BOARD MEMBER

Mr. Chair, these are the Proposed Measures coming from the Municipalities covered
from the 3™ District of Leyte. May the Chair recognize the Honorable Alan Ang?

HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR

The Honorable Allan Ang, you are recognized.

HON. ALAN P. ANG: 3R° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

Mr. Chair, Mr. Floor Leader, and to my Colleagues, good morning.

Item No. 27 is Municipal Ordinance No. 1, S 2026 of the Municipality of Villaba, Leyte
entitled an Amendment to Article Chapter V of the Municipal Ordinance No. 126, $-2020
otherwise known as the 2020 Revised Revenue Code of the Municipality of Villaba.

ltem No. 28 is Ordinance No. 2, S 2026 of the Municipality oy Villaba, Leyte entitled
an Ordinance Creating the Plantilla Position of Legislative Staff Officer 11l with Salary Grade 18
at the Office of the Sangguniang Bayan of Villaba, Leyte and Appropriating Funds thereof.

And ltem No. 29 is Municipal Ordinance No. 5, Series of 2026 of the Municipality of
Villaba entitled an Ordinance Amending Section 5G.02, Article 6 Market Fees and Charges of
Municipal Ordinance No. 126, $-2020 otherwise known as the 2020 Revised Revenue Code
of the Municipality of Villaba.

Mr. Chair, Iltem No. 27, 28 and 29 is recommended for the declaration of its validity by
the Provincial Legal Office. So, | do so move for the approval.

HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

Second.

HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°" DIST. BOARD MEMBER

Second.

HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR

Duly seconded.
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709 Any questions?

710 Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-790

711 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
712 Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the next item, Item no. 30, Madam

713 Secretary, please.

714

715 MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY

716 ITEM NO. 30

717

718 Presented for consideration is General Fund
719 Supplemental Budget No. 07 FY 2025 of the Municipality of
720 Tunga, Leyle amounting to Php2,589,849.80 under
721 Appropriation Ordinance No. 08, Series of 2025. Same is
722 recommended for APPROVAL with CONDITIONS by the Local
723 Finance Committee per review letter dated March 23, 2026.

724

725 ITEM NO. 31

726

727 Presented for consideration is General Fund
728 Supplemental Budget No. 02 FY 2025 of the Municipality of
729 Mayorga, Lleyle amounfing to Php2,659,723.73 under
730 Appropriation Ordinance No. 2, Series of 2025. Same is
731 recommended for APPROVAL with CONDITIONS by the Local
732 Finance Committee per review letter dated March 23, 2026.

733

734 ITEM NO. 32

735

736 Presented for consideration is General Fund Annual
737 Budget FY 2026 of the Municipality of San Isidro, Leyte
738 amounting o Php279,592.113.00 under Appropriation
739 Ordinance No. 02, Series of 2025. Same is recommended for
740 APPROVAL with CONDITIONS by the Local Finance Committee
741 per review letter dated March 23, 2026.

742

743 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1®T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
744 Mr. Chair, these items are request for approval of General Fund and Supplemental

745 Budget. May the Chair recognize the Honorable Wilson Uy?

746 HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR
747 The Honorable Wilson Uy, you are recognized.

748 HON. WILSON S. UY: 1°T DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

749 Thank you, Mr. Chair and thank you Honorable Floor Leader.
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For Item No. 30 is General Fund Supplemental Budget No. 07 Fiscal Year 2025 of the
Municipality of Tunga, Leyte in the amount of Php 2,589,849.80 under Appropriation
Ordinance No0.08, Series of 2025.

ftem No. 31 is General Fund Supplemental Budget No. 02 Fiscal Year 2025 of the
Municipality of Mayorga, Leyte amounting to Php 2,659,723.73 under Appropriation Ordinance
No. 2, series of 2025.

ltem No. 32 is General Fund Annual Budget Fiscal Year 2026 of the Municipality of
San Isidro, Leyte amounting to Php 279,592, 113.00 under Appropriation Ordinance No. 02,
Series of 2025.

Mr. Chair if a motion is in order 1 move that we approve the General Fund
Supplemental Budget No. 7 of the Municipality of Tunga, Leyte, and the General Fund
Supplemental Budget No. 02 of the Municipality of Mayorga, Leyte and the General Fund
Annual Budget from FY 2026 of the Municipality of San Isidro, Leyte. All of these are
recommended for approval with conditions by the Local Finance Committee. | so move, Mr.
Chair.

HON. MA. MARTINA L. GIMENEZ: EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, LIGA NG MGA BRGY
PRESIDENT

Second.

HON. ELMER FREDERICO N. CODILLA: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

Second.

HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

Second.

HON. MJ LUINLY D. LUMEN: EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, SK PRESIDENT

Second.

HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR

Duly seconded.

Any questions?

Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-791
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HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the next item. ltem no. 33, Madam
Secretary, please.
MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY

ITEM NO. 33

Presented for consideration is a request for
ACCREDITATION with the Provincial Government of Leyte as a
non-government organization of HACIENDA COCONUT
FARMERS’ ASSOCIATION with office address at Barangay Pawa,
La Paz, Leyte,
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Next ltem is a request for Accreditation coming from Hacienda Coconut Farmer's
Association of Barangay Pawa, La Paz, Leyte. | move that we approve the same, Mr. Chair.
HON. MA. MARTINA L. GIMENEZ: EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, LIGA NG MGA BRGY
PRESIDENT
Second.
HON. ELMER FREDERICO N. CODILLA: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.
HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.
HON. WILSON 8. UY: 1°T DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR
Duly seconded.
Any questions?
Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-792
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER

Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the next item. ltem no. 34, Madam

Secretary, please.
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MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY
ITEM NO. 34

Presented for consideration is a letter dated March
31, 2026, requesting for authority for the Honorable Carlos
Jericho L. Pefilla, Governor, Province of Leyle, to purchase
motor vehicles for the Provincial Government of Leyte, in the
total amount of PhP10,950,000.00, fo be utilized by the different
departments, offices and unifs of the Province of Leyte.
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Item No. 34 is a request for Authority for the Honorable Governor, Mr. Chair, to
purchase motor vehicles for the Provincial Government of Leyte, in the total amount of Php
10,950,000.00, to be utilized by the different departments, offices and units of the Province of
Leyte.

Perusing the records, Mr. Chair, the documentary attachments required under the
Procurement Acts is in order. Hence, | move that we grant the request of the Honorable
Governor, Mr. Chair.

HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.
HON. WILSON S. UY: 1°T DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR
Duly seconded.
Any questions?
Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-793
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER

Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the next item. item no. 35, Madam

Secretary, please.
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843 MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY

844 ITEM NO. 35

845

846 Presented for consideration is a letter from Punong
847 Barangay Basilio D. Calda requesting for copies of complete
848 records of the case filed by Ley Mart L. Villasante, et. al.

849

850 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°" DIST. BOARD MEMBER
851 For Item No. 35, Mr. Chair, is a letter request coming from the Punong Barangay
852 Basilio D. Calda, requesting for copies of complete records of the case filed by Ley Mart L.
853 Villasante, et. al.

854 While | am proposing that we approve this request, we would like them to coordinate
855 with the Secretariat. | move that this be approved and let the one requesting their copies
856 coordinate with the Sangguniang Panlalawigan Secretariat. | so move, Mr. Chair.

857 HON. MA. MARTINA L. GIMENEZ: EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, LIGA NG MGA BRGY PRESIDENT
858 Second.

859 HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

860 Second.

861 HON. WILSON S. UY: 1°T DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

862 Second.

863 HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICERNVICE GOVERNOR

864 Duly seconded.
865 Any questions?
866 Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-794

867 HON. MILDRED JOY P. QUE: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

868 Mr. Chair?

865 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°" DIST. BOARD MEMBER
870 Mr. Chair, will you please recognize the Honorable Joy Que?

871 HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR

872 Honorable Joy Que, you are recognized.

873
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HON. MILDRED JOY P. QUE: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Mr. Chair, just a short caveat, because | think the purpose given by Honorable Calda
on the request for copies is to file Administrative case also to the Sangguniang Bayan
Members. So, the request he approved but with conditions that strict supervision be done
when they will be photocopying in front of us so that no exchange of documents will happen. It
should be under strict surveillance. Thank you.
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Mr. Chair, the manifestation of Honorable Joy Que is noted.
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR
Duly seconded.
Any questions?
Hearing noﬁe, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-794-A
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1%T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Thank you, Mr. Chair. We now proceed to the next item. ltem no. 36, Madam
Secretary, please.
MRS. FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO: SANGGUNIANG PANLALAWIGAN SECRETARY
ITEM NO. 36

Presented for consideration is a lefter dated April
1, 2026 from Mr. Jerome V. Bayocboc, Plant Superintendent,
Cleanaway Philippines Inc. to the Sangguniang Panlalawigan
thru Hon. Leonarde M. Javier, Jr., Vice Governor, requesting
the approval of medical waste hauling for the month of April,
2026.
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR. TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1®" DIST. BOARD MEMBER
Since, there is a pending request of the Cleanaway, | move that this be referred also
that the Joint Committee of Disaster and Environment, Mr. Chair, as requirement. | so move,
Mr. Chair.
HON. MA. MARTINA L. GIMENEZ: EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, LIGA NG MGA BRGY PRESIDENT

Second.
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905 HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

906 Second.

907 HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR

908 Duly seconded.
909 Any questions?
910 Hearing none, motion is approved. RES. NO. 2026-795

911  HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR: TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°" DIST. BOARD MEMBER
912 Mr. Chair, we have no item in our agenda already. The floor is now open for other
913  matfters.

914 HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

915 Mr. Chair?

916 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1%" DIST. BOARD MEMBER
917 May the Chair recognize Honorable Centino?

918 HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR

919 Go ahead, please.

920 HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

921 Mr. Chair, present today in our session are the Barangay Officials of Apale, isabel,

922 Leyte, headed by Honorable Barangay Chairman Enrico Oliveros. Will you please recognize

923 the Honorable Barangay Chairman Oliveros? But before that, | move to suspend the rules so

924 we can hear a brief message from our visitors. | so move.

925 HON. ELMER FREDERICO N. CODILLA: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER

926 Second.

927 HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR

928 Duly seconded.
929 Motion is approved.
930 Rules are suspended.

931 (Rules are suspended at 11:55 am)
932 HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°T DIST. BOARD MEMBER
933 Mr. Chair, we give the floor to Honorable Barangay Chairman Enrico Oliveros.
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HON. ENRICO OLIVEROS: BARANGAY CHAIRMAN, BRGY APALE, ISABEL LEYTE

Thank you, Mr. Chair. Good morning to the August Body the Sangguniang
Panlalawigan and specially to our Presiding Officer Honorable Leonardo Javier, Jr.

We are all here the whole Council of the Barangay Apale, Isabel, Leyte, presenting
our thanks and gratitude for giving us our financial assistance from very own Honorable
Flaviano Centino and Honorable Eimer Codilla for the Php 10,000.00 for financial assistance
for our Socio-Cultural Activities and also to the Governor for the Php 15,000.00 and hopefully
there would be an additional assistance for our Socio-Cultural.

Thank you, Mr. Chair and thank you for the SP and then, amo gin paningkamotan nga
makaabot gud mi, in a proper time tungod kay layo-layo man an amo. So, that's all medyo
ginkulbaan ko kay nag hangyo kog puno. Thank you.

HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1%T DIST. BOARD MEMBER

Thank you very much, Honorable Barangay Chairman Enrico Oliveros and to the
Council.
Mr. Chair, | move to lift the suspension of the rules. | so move.
HON. FLAVIANO C. CENTINO, JR.: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR
Duly seconded.
Motion is approved.
Suspension is lifted.
(suspension lifted at 11:58 am)
HON. RONNAN CHRISTIAN M. REPOSAR:TEMP. FLOOR LEADER/1°" DIST. BOARD MEMBER
We don’t have any more items, Mr. Chair. From the Floor, do you have any concerns
for other matters?

It appears there is none, Mr. Chair. May we recognize the Honorable MJ Lumen?
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICERNICE GOVERNOR

Honorable MJ, please, go ahead.
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HON. MJ LUINLY D. LUMEN: EX-OFFICIO MEMBER, SK PRESIDENT
Thank you very so much, Honorable Presiding Chair. Thank you so much, Mr. Floor
Leader. Happy Easter everyone. Since, if there are no other matters, Mr. Chair, | move to
adjourn our Session. Thank you so much.
HON. ELMER FREDERICO N. CODILLA: 4™ DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.
HON. RAISSA J. VILLASIN: 2"° DISTRICT BOARD MEMBER
Second.
HON. LEONARDO M. JAVIER JR: PRESIDING OFFICER/VICE GOVERNOR
Duly seconded.
Any questions?
Hearing none, motion is approved.
(The regular session was adjourned at 11:59 o’clock in the morning

Closing Prayer led by Honorable Villasin)
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35" Regular Session
April 7, 2026

| HEREBY CERTIFY to the correctness of the foregoing minutes.

FLORINDA JILL S. UYVICO
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